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CORPORATE SNAPSHOT 
 Procuring Rough Diamonds 
Sagar Diamonds Limited deals in rough and polished diamonds, which are procured from, trusted and 
certified suppliers and provided to recognized buyers. It also carries out manufacturing by procuring 
rough diamonds, which are then processed by trained and qualified workers on job work basis. 
 
 Exporting Diamond Jewellery 
With consistent performance and dedicated staff, progress is inevitable. We further created SAGAR 
DIAMONDS that manufactures and exports diamond Jewellery.  
The manufacturing activity is carried out at our factory unit located in Sachin (S.E.Z), Gujarat. We 
specialize in rings, earrings & necklaces, which are carefully handcrafted by skilled artisans.  
 
 Standard and Quality of Diamonds 
To maintain the standard and quality of diamonds, we carry out extensive quality checks and source our 
diamonds from reliable and recognized suppliers. We endeavor to be the best by providing quality that 
ensures customer satisfaction. 
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MESSAGE FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR 
 

Dear Shareholders, 
 
I am extremely proud to present the 08th Annual Report 
of Sagar Diamonds Limited, BSE SME Listed Company as 
the Managing Director.  
 
 
Despite Inflation in US, Russia-Ukraine Conflict, rapid 
increase in policy rate, geopolitical tensions and 
disrupted business operations worldwide. Nonetheless, I 
am proud to announce that in the face of multiple 
difficulties, we, at Sagar, sailed through with grit and 
recorded a promising and tremendous performance.  
 
 

 
I am pleased to say that your Company has delivered competitive, profitable growth.  
 
We ended financial year 2023 with Turnover of Rs. 5,47,498.88 lakhs and profit after tax of 
Rs.2,006.58 lakhs. 
 
During Financial year 2022-23, Your Company’s Export Sales has been recorded of Rs.4,06,965.62 
lakhs against export revenue recorded of Rs. 4,83,997.04 lakhs in the previous year. Your 
Company has successfully exported Diamonds and Jewellery in its Brand name to Hong Kong.  

Details of our growth Strategies and company’ performances during Financial Year 2022-23 have 
been elaborated in the Director Report and Management Discussion Analysis Report Section of 
this Annual Report.   
 
I would like to thank all our consumers, Bankers, employees, Suppliers who are directly or 
indirectly associated with the company for their support and commitment, which helped us 
reach where we are now. 

I would like to thank our shareholders for their trust and encouragement and assure to serve 
strong and Profitable and Sustainable Growth. 

With Warm regards 
Mr. Vaibhav Dipak Shah 

Chairman & Managing Director 
Sagar Diamonds Limited 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 08th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of members of "SAGAR DIAMONDS 
LIMITED " will be held on Saturday, the 30th Day of September, 2023 at 11.30 a.m. through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:- 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To re-appoint Mr. Vaibhav Dipak Shah (DIN: 03302936), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 
152(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.  

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
3. To Consider Appointment of Statutory Auditor for period of five years and to fix their remuneration. 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass  the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Section 139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, M/s. Nitin Gami & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 332567E), be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor 
of the Company for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years (Financial year 2023-24 to Financial Year 2027-
28) commencing from the conclusion of this 08th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 13th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2028 at such remuneration plus 
applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and recommended by the Audit 
Committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board of directors of the company be and are hereby severally authorized 
to do all such act, deeds and things to give effect to this resolution." 
 
4. To Consider Regularisation and Appointment of Mr. Samir Gaonkar as a Non-executive Director  
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

" RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder, including any amendment, modification, 
variation or re-enactment thereof to the Companies Act, 2013, for the time being in force, Mr. Samir 
Gaonkar (DIN: 03100710), who was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f 10th January, 2023 by the 
Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and the Articles of Association of 
the Company and who hold office only upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting and in respect 
of whom a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act has been received by the Company from a 
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Member proposing her candidature for the office of a Director,  Mr. Samir Gaonkar be and is hereby 
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company. " 
 
5. To Consider Appointment of Ms. Tanuja Durvesh Parab as Non-Executive Independent Director 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all other applicable 
provisions of, and Schedule IV to, the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification/s and/or 
re-enactment/s for the time being in force) and pursuant to provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 
2015, Ms. Tanuja Durvesh Parab (DIN: 10183217), who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an 
Additional Director (in category of Non-executive Independent Director) of the company w.e.f 25th May, 
2023 pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and who qualifies 
for being appointed as an Independent Director and in respect of whom a notice in writing under Section 
160 of the Act has been received by the Company from a Member proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 
five years from the original date of appointment i.e. 25th May, 2023 upto 24th May, 2028 and shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation during such term. 

6. To Consider Appointment of Ms. Monica Mahesh Soni as Non-Executive Independent Director  

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all other applicable 
provisions of, and Schedule IV to, the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification/s and/or 
re-enactment/s for the time being in force) and pursuant to provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 
2015, Ms. Monica Mahesh Soni (DIN: 10183218), who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an 
Additional Director (in category of Non-executive Independent Director) of the company w.e.f 25th May, 
2023 pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and who qualifies 
for being appointed as an Independent Director and in respect of whom a notice in writing under Section 
160 of the Act has been received by the Company from a Member proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 
five years from the original date of appointment i.e. 25th May, 2023 upto 24th May, 2028 and shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation during such term. 

7. To Consider Appointment of Ms. Fatima Fakruddin Shaikh as Non-Executive Independent Director  

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 149, 152 and all other applicable 
provisions of, and Schedule IV to, the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification/s and/or 
re-enactment/s for the time being in force) and pursuant to provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 
2015, Ms. Fatima Fakruddin Shaikh (DIN: 10183232), who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an 
Additional Director (in category of Non-executive Independent Director) of the company w.e.f 25th May, 
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2023 pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and who qualifies 
for being appointed as an Independent Director and in respect of whom a notice in writing under Section 
160 of the Act has been received by the Company from a Member proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 
five years from the original date of appointment i.e. 25th May, 2023 upto 24th May, 2028 and shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation during such term. 

By order of the Board 
For Sagar Diamonds Limited 

Sd/- 
 Vaibhav Shah 

  (Managing Director) 
Date: 08th September, 2023   
Place: Surat 

 
NOTES:- 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars 
dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022 and December 
28, 2022 (“MCA Circulars”) has permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 
through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company will be held through VC/OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM 
through VC/OAVM only. 
 

2. The Deemed Venue of the 08th Annual General Meeting of the Company shall be its Registered Office. 
 

3. As the AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM, the facility for appointment of Proxy by the 
Members is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including 
Route Map are not annexed to this Notice. However, the Body Corporate are entitled to appoint 
authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast 
their votes through e-voting. 
 

4. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the 
Special Business at Item No. 3 to 7 of the above Notice is annexed hereto. 
 

5. The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), to provide 
video conferencing facility and remote e-voting and e-voting facility during AGM. 
 

6. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

7. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also required to send 
scanned certified true copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of the Board Resolution/ Authority Letter etc., 
together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), to the 
Scrutinizer at cs.jkpa@gmail.com and copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in and 
cs@sagardiamonds.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also 
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upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload 
Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 
 

8. The Register of Members and share Transfer Book shall remain closed from SATURDAY, 23RD 
SEPTEMBER, 2023 TO SATURDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2023 (BOTH DAYS INCLUSIVE) for purpose of 
08th Annual General Meeting of the company.  
 

9. Brief profile and other relevant information about Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment, 
in accordance with Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, are attached to this Notice forming part of the Annual Report. 
 

10. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 
Company/Registrar of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members 
are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings 
should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 
 

11. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2023 only shall be entitled 
to avail the facility of remote e-voting and e-voting at this Annual General Meeting. A person who is 
not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice as for information purpose only. 
 

ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT AND PROCESS FOR REGISTRATION OF E-MAIL ID FOR 
OBTAINING COPY OF ANNUAL REPORT, USER ID & PASSWORD AND REGITRATION OF E-MAIL ID FOR E-
VOTING: 

 
12. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, Notice of the AGM along with the 

Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 
addresses are registered with the Company, RTA or CDSL / NSDL (“Depositories”). Members may note 
that the Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the 
Company’s website www.sagardiamonds.com,  website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at  
www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

13. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their email 
addresses with the relevant Depository Participants. In case of any queries / difficulties in registering 
the e-mail address, Members may write to cs@sagardiamonds.com or jibu@bigshareonline.com. If 
you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to 
the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. Alternatively members may send a request 
to  evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-voting. 
 

14. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to 
update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting 
facility. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 
15. Only those persons who are Members of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 

2023 will be able to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM and a person who is not a Member as on the 
cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. 
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16. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-
Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned below for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General 
meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under 
Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login 
where the EVEN  of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the 
User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same 
by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
 

17. For convenience of the Members and proper conduct of AGM, Members can login and join at least 15  
minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice 
and shall be kept open throughout the proceedings of AGM. The facility of participation at the AGM 
through VC/OAVM will be made available for members on first come first served basis. This will not 
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. 
who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
 

18. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM with use of technology can send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at  022 - 4886 7000 / 022 - 2499 7000 
 

19. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. Further 
Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.  
 

20. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS/SEEK CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO  ANNUAL REPORT: 
 

21. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning 
their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at cs@sagardiamonds.com from 
Thursday 21st September, 2023 (9:00 A.M.) to Saturday, 23rd September, 2023 (5:00 P.M). Those 
Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of 
speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. The queries should be precise and in 
brief to enable the Company to answer the same suitably depending on the availability of time at the 
meeting. Members many send their questions in advance mentioning their name, DP ID and Client 
ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at cs@sagardiamonds.com during aforesaid period. The same 
will be replied by the Company suitably. 
 

HELPDESK FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE FOR ANY 
TECHNICAL ISSUES REALTING TO LOGIN THROUGH DEPOSITORIES i.e. NSDL AND CDSL 
22. Contact Details 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 
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Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33 

 
VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 

 
23. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), read with MCA 
Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in 
respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into 
an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-
Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. 
 

24. The Board of Directors have appointed M/s. JKPA & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Surat 
as the Scrutiniser to scrutinise the voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  
 

25. The Members who have cast their vote by remote E-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ 
participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again during 
the AGM. Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be 
eligible to cast their vote through e-voting during the AGM. Members are requested to access the 
remote e-voting facility provided by the Company through NSDL e-voting system at 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/. Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or 
have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting 
instructions mentioned in the notice. Further members can also use the OTP based login for logging 
into the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
 

26. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Saturday, 23rd September, 2023. 
 

27. Any person who becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and 
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2023, may obtain the login ID and password 
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with 
NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. 
If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or 
“Physical User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 
1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under 
“Access to NSDL e-Voting system". 
 

28. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. Login to the E-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/ Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 
 

29. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 
call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
 



SAGAR DIAMONDS LIMITED 

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 [10] 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS 
UNDER: 
 
30. The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, 27th September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 

Friday, 29th September, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 
for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 23rd September, 2023, may cast their vote 
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up 
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 23rd September, 2023. 
 

31. The details of the process and manner for remote E-voting using NSDL e-Voting system are explained 
herein below: 
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to 
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , 
this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 
you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
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company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience. 

 
 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab 
and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress 
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting 
service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available 
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also 
able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on  e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 
4. Your User ID details are given below : 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID 
is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 
with the company 
For example: if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) a)If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote.  
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?  
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 
the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password:  

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
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c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.  

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL.  

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box.  

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.  
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to 
click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above 
for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 
OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 
 
32. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast 

during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote E-voting and make within two 
working days of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall 
countersign the same. 
 

33. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website at 
www.sagardiamonds.com and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately. The 
Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company 
are listed. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 RELATING TO 
SPECIAL BUSINESS MENTIONED IN THE NOTICE CONVENING 08TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 

Item No. 3 
 
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 08th September, 2023, as per the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee and pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions if 
any, recommended the appointment of M/s. Nitin Gami & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 
332567E) as Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years 
(Financial year 2023-24 to Financial Year 2027-28) commencing from the conclusion of this 08th Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion of 13th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 
2028 at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and 
recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board 
of Director of the Company. 
 
The Company has received consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s. Nitin Gami & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants (FRN:332567E) to act as Statutory Auditor of the Company along with a 
confirmation that, their appointment, if made, would be within the limits prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid Ordinary Resolution. 
 
Accordingly, the Board recommends an Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying 
Notice for approval of the Members. 
 
Item No. 4 
 
The Board at its meeting appointed Mr. Samir Gaonkar (DIN: 03100710) as an Additional Director with 
effect from 10th January, 2023 pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, he will hold 
office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received consent in 
writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 and intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is not disqualified under 
sub- section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. A notice in writing under section 160 of the 
Act has been received by the Company from a Member signifying his intention to propose the 
appointment of Mr. Samir Gaonkar, as a Director of the Company.  
 
The Board considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable 
to avail their services as Director. 
 
Except Mr. Samir Gaonkar (DIN: 03100710) for herself, being the appointee, none of the other Director/s, 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their relatives, are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid Ordinary Resolution.  

Accordingly, The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item 
No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members. 

Item No. 5 
 
The Board at its meeting held on 25th May, 2023, appointed Ms. Tanuja Durvesh Parab (DIN: 10183217), 
as an additional director (Category - Non-executive, Independent) of the Company. who shall hold office 
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the till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Company has received 
consent in writing to act as directors in Form DIR-2 and intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not 
disqualified under sub- section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. A notice in writing under 
section 160 of the Act has been received by the Company from a Member signifying his intention to 
propose the appointment of Ms. Tanuja Durvesh Parab, as an Independent Director of the Company. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Tanuja Durvesh Parab (DIN: 10183217), fulfil the conditions specified in 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure 
requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) for appointment as Independent Directors of the 
Company and are independent of management of the Company.  
 
The Board of Directors has considered, approved and recommended, a proposal to appoint Ms. Tanuja 
Durvesh Parab (DIN: 10183217), as an Independent Director (Category - Non-executive) of the Company, 
for a term of five years from the original date of appointment i.e. 25th May, 2023 upto 24th May, 2028 and 
shall not be liable to retire by rotation during such term. 
 
Except Ms. Tanuja Durvesh Parab (DIN: 10183217) for herself, being the appointee, none of the other 
Director/s, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their relatives, are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid Special Resolution.  

Accordingly, The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item 
No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members. 
 
Item No. 6 
 
The Board at its meeting held on 25th May, 2023, appointed Ms. Monica Mahesh Soni (DIN: 10183218), as 
an additional director (Category - Non-executive, Independent) of the Company. who shall hold office the 
till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Company has received consent in 
writing to act as directors in Form DIR-2 and intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not 
disqualified under sub- section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. A notice in writing under 
section 160 of the Act has been received by the Company from a Member signifying his intention to 
propose the appointment of Ms. Monica Mahesh Soni as an Independent Director of the Company. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Monica Mahesh Soni (DIN: 10183218), fulfil the conditions specified in 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure 
requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) for appointment as Independent Directors of the 
Company and are independent of management of the Company.  
 
The Board of Directors has considered, approved and recommended, a proposal to appoint Ms. Monica 
Mahesh Soni (DIN: 10183218) as an Independent Director (Category - Non-executive) of the Company, for 
a term of five years from the original date of appointment i.e. 25th May, 2023 upto 24th May, 2028 and 
shall not be liable to retire by rotation during such term. 
 
Except Ms. Monica Mahesh Soni (DIN: 10183218), for herself, being the appointee, none of the other 
Director/s, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their relatives, are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid Special Resolution.  

Accordingly, The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item 
No. 6 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members. 
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Item No. 7 
 
The Board at its meeting held on 25th May, 2023, appointed Ms. Fatima Fakruddin Shaikh (DIN: 10183232) 
as an additional director (Category - Non-executive, Independent) of the Company. who shall hold office 
the till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Company has received 
consent in writing to act as directors in Form DIR-2 and intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not 
disqualified under sub- section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. A notice in writing under 
section 160 of the Act has been received by the Company from a Member signifying his intention to 
propose the appointment of Ms. Fatima Fakruddin Shaikh as an Independent Director of the Company. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Fatima Fakruddin Shaikh (DIN: 10183232), fulfil the conditions specified 
in the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing obligations and 
disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) for appointment as Independent 
Directors of the Company and are independent of management of the Company.  
 
The Board of Directors has considered, approved and recommended, a proposal to appoint Ms. Fatima 
Fakruddin Shaikh (DIN: 10183232) as an Independent Director (Category - Non-executive) of the 
Company, for a term of five years from the original date of appointment i.e. 25th May, 2023 upto 24th 
May, 2028 and shall not be liable to retire by rotation during such term. 
 
Except Ms. Fatima Fakruddin Shaikh (DIN: 10183232), for herself, being the appointee, none of the other 
Director/s, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their relatives, are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid Special Resolution.  

Accordingly, The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item 
No. 7 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members. 
 
 

By order of the Board 
For Sagar Diamonds Limited 

Sd/- 
Vaibhav Shah 

(Managing Director) 
Date: 08th September, 2023 
Place: Surat 
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Annexure-A 
Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard – 2 on 
“General Meeting”: 
 Name of Director VAIBHAV DIPAK 

SHAH 
SAMIR 
GAONKAR 

TANUJA 
DURVESH 
PARAB 

MONICA 
MAHESH 
SONI 

FATIMA 
FAKRUDDI
N SHAIKH 

DIN 03302936 03100710 10183217 10183218 10183232 
Designation Managing Director Additional 

Director Non-
executive 

Additional 
Independent 
Director 

Additional 
Independent 
Director 

Additional 
Independen
t Director 

Date of Birth  14/04/1986 29/06/1972 28/08/1990 20/10/1987 31/03/1992 
Nationality  Indian Indian Indian Indian Indian 
Date of First/Original 
Appointment on Board 

15/07/2015 10/01/2023 25/05/2023 25/05/2023 25/05/2023 

Expertise in Specific 
General Functional Area 

More than 15 years  
of experience In field 
of manufacturing and 
trading of Diamond, 
gold, precious stones 
Jewellery. 

More than 30 
years of 
experience in 
Chemical 
Industry  

More than 10 
years of 
experience in 
Statutory 
Audit, Tax 
Audit, Tax 
Compliance, 
ROC & 
Secretarial 
Work  

More than 
15 years of 
experience 
in Project 
Managemen
t of Food 
Beverages, 
Hospitality, 
Retail, 
Commercial, 
Interior 
Design.  

More than 5 
years of 
experience 
in Client 
Manageme
nt and Sales 
and 
marketing  
of product 

Qualification Bachelor in 
Commerce and is a 
GIA Diamond 
graduate. 

Graduate Bachelor of 
Commerce 
Master of 
Commerce 
Govt. Diploma 
in Cooperation 
& Accountancy   

Bachelor of  
Commerce 
Diploma in 
Interior 
Design 

Graduate 
from 
Mumbai 
University 

Terms and Conditions of 
appointment/reappoint
ment along with details 
of remuneration sought 
to be paid and 
remuneration last 
drawn by such person 

Re-appointment on 
retiring by rotation 
Drawn Rs. 208 lakhs 
as remuneration in 
F.Y 2022-23. 

Non-Executive 
Director, liable 
to retire by 
rotation. 

Appointment 
for term of 5 
years as an 
Independent 
Director  

Appointment 
for term of 5 
years as an 
Independent 
Director  

Appointment 
for term of 5 
years as an 
Independent 
Director  

No. of Board Meetings 
attended during the 
year 

Twelve (12) Two (2) -- -- -- 

Directorship held in 
listed Companies 

Sagar Diamonds Ltd. Sagar Diamonds 
Ltd. 

Sagar 
Diamonds Ltd. 

Sagar 
Diamonds 
Ltd. 

Sagar 
Diamonds 
Ltd. 

Directorship held in 
other Companies/LLP 

1. Sagarsavya 
Wellbeing Foundation 
2. Sagarglobal 
Empire Pvt. Ltd. 
3. Sagarempire 
Infraventures Pvt. Ltd. 
4. Sagarempire 
Green energy Pvt. Ltd. 

1. Sungreat 
Heights 
Structures Pvt. 
Ltd. 
2. Mimansa 
Jewellery Pvt. 
Ltd. 
3. Sagarempire 

-- -- -- 
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5. Sagarempire 
Aerospace Pvt. Ltd. 
6. Sagarempire 
Agro Pvt. Ltd. 
7. Sagarempire 
Jewels Pvt. Ltd. 
8. Sagarempire 
Bullions Pvt. Ltd. 
9. Sagarempire 
Homes Pvt. Ltd. 
10. SG Diamonds LLP 
11. Shilp Iconic LLP 

Jewels Pvt. Ltd. 

Membership/ 
Chairmanship 
of Committees of other 
Public Companies  

-- -- -- -- -- 

Shareholding in the 
Company 

62,27,860 Equity 
Share 

-- -- -- -- 

Relationship between 
Director/KMP inter-se 

Not related to any 
Director/KMP 

Not related to 
any 
Director/KMP 

Not related to 
any 
Director/KMP 

Not related to 
any 
Director/KMP 

Not related 
to any 
Director/KMP 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 
To 
The Members  
SAGAR DIAMONDS LIMITED 
     
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 08th annual Report of the company together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023.  
  
FINANCIAL RESULT AND PERFORMANCE:                                                                                                                

(Rs. in Lakhs except EPS)  

 
1. BUSINESS  OVERVIEW 

Your Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, sale and trading of diamond and Jewellery 
and operates in different geographical areas i.e. domestic sales and export sales.    
 

2. STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
Your company reported a turnover of Rs. 5,47,498.88 lakhs i.e., a 12.50% decrease over the previous 
financial year. The Company delivered an EBITDA (before exceptional items) of Rs. 2,945.86 lakhs with a 
decline of 19.50% (PY 3,659.27 lakhs ) and Profit before tax at Rs. 2,603.92 lakhs with a decrease of 
25.63% (PY Rs. 3,501.47 lakhs). The Net Profit after Tax was recorded at Rs.2,006.58 lakhs against Rs. 
2,907.68 lakhs in previous year. The EPS recorded at Rs.15.87 per share (PY Rs.23.00) a decline by 31%.  
 

3. EXPORT 
The Company has exported diamonds and Jewellery to Hong Kong. During the year under review, your 
Company has recorded export of Rs.4,06,965.62 lakhs against export revenue recorded of Rs. 4,83,997.04 
lakhs in the previous year. 
 

4. DIVIDEND 
With a view to conserve the resources for the company’s Business operations, your directors have 
deemed it prudent to not to recommend any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2023.   
 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVE 
 During the year under review, no amount from profit was transferred to General Reserve. 
 

6. SHARE CAPITAL 
The Paid up equity share capital as on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 1264.378 lakhs divided into 1,26,43,780 
equity shares of Rs. 10 each. During the year under review: 

Particulars 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 
Revenue from Operation 5,47,498.88 6,25,743.47 
Other income 12,307.71 23,301.51 
Profit Before Interest & Depreciation & Tax (EBITDA) 2,945.86 3,659.27 
(-)Finance Cost 230.73 87.16 
(-) Depreciation 111.21 70.64 
Net Profit before tax & Exceptional items 2,603.92 3,501.47 
(+)Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00 
Net Profit Before tax 2,603.92 3,501.47 
(-) Tax Expense 597.34 593.79 
Net Profit  for the year after tax 2,006.58 2,907.68 
Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) (In Rs.) 15.87 23.00 
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a. The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or 
otherwise. 

b. The Company has not issued any shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the 
Company or its subsidiary under any scheme. 

c. There is no change in the Share Capital Structure of the Company during the year under review. 
 

7. ANNUAL RETURN 
The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 in Form MGT - 7 in accordance with Section 
92(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, will be 
uploaded on the Company’s website and the same can be accessed at 
https://www.sagardiamonds.com/investor-relations/reports.aspx 
 

8. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE  
As on 31st March, 2023, your Company does not have any Joint Ventures, Subsidiaries and Associates 
Company. Hence, statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s 
subsidiaries/ Associate Companies and Joint Venture in Form AOC-1 is  not applicable to your company. 
 

9. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 
As per regulation 15 (2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the 
compliance with the corporate governance provisions as specified in regulations 17, [17A,] 18, 19, 20, 
21,22, 23, 24, [24A,] 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) [and (t)] of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and 
para C , D and E of Schedule V shall not apply, in respect of (a) The listed entity having paid up equity 
share capital not exceeding rupees ten crores and net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crores, as 
on the last day of the previous financial year (b) The listed entity which has listed its specified securities 
on the SME Exchange. 
 
The company falls within the ambit of aforesaid exemption (b), hence the compliance with the reporting  
of corporate governance  is not applicable to the company. Therefore, Corporate Governance Report and 
Auditor's Certificate on Corporate Governance is not provided. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms an integral part of this Annual 
Report.  
 

10. DEPOSITS 
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted deposit falling within the ambit of Section 
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Hence, the 
requirement for furnishing details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Chapter V of the Act is 
not applicable. 
 

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s Articles 
of Association, of Mr. Vaibhav Dipak Shah (DIN: 03302936) will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and, being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.   
 
Mr. Samir Gaonkar (DIN: 03100710) was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-executive) w.e.f 10th 

January, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and the 
Articles of Association of the Company and he holds office only upto the date of ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and the company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a Member 
proposing her candidature for the office of a Director.  
 



SAGAR DIAMONDS LIMITED 

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 [21] 
 

Ms. Tanuja Durvesh Parab (DIN: 10183217), Ms. Monica Mahesh Soni (DIN: 10183218), Ms. Fatima 
Fakruddin Shaikh (DIN: 10183232) were appointed an Additional Independent Directors  w.e.f 25th May, 
2023 by the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 161 of the Act and the Articles of 
Association of the Company and they hold office only upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting 
and the company has received notices in writing under Section 160 of the Act from Members proposing 
them for the office of Independent Directors for a term of five years from the original date of 
appointment i.e. 25thMay, 2023 upto 24th

 May, 2028,  not liable to retire by rotation during their term.  
 
The details of Director being recommended for appointment/reappointment as required under the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are contained in the accompanying 
Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the company. 
 
During period under review following changes has been occurred in the Board of Director: 

Name of Director/KMP Designation Date of 
Appointment  

Date of 
Resignation 

Ms. Bandana Singh  Independent Director 14/06/2019 23/09/2022 
Mr. Shrikrishna Baburam Pandey Independent Director 14/06/2019 23/09/2022 
Mr. Manendra Pratap Singh Independent Director 14/06/2019 23/09/2022 
Mr. Saurin Rasiklal Shah  Non Executive Director 11/12/2020 10/12/2022 
Mr. Dhaval Dipak Shah Additional Director-Non Executive  11/11/2022 11/01/2023 
Mr. Praveen Kumar Rai Additional Director- Independent 24/12/2022 28/02/2023 
Mr. Vichitra Narayan Pathak Additional Director - Independent 24/12/2022 28/02/2023 
Ms. Shilpa Agarwal Additional Director - Independent 24/12/2022 27/02/2023 
Mr. Samir Gaonkar Additional Director-Non Executive 10/01/2023 -- 

 
During the year following persons have been designated as Key Managerial Personnel of your Company 
pursuant to Section 2 (51) and Section 203 of the Act, read with Rule 8 (5) (iii) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 framed there under: 

Name of KMP Designation Date of Appointment 
in current Designation 

Date of 
Resignation 

*Mr. Vaibhav Dipak Shah Managing Director 08/07/2017 - 
Mr. Vaibhav Dipak Shah CFO 13/12/2018 10/01/2023 
Mr. Chirag  Lalit Dave CFO 10/01/2023 03/09/2023 
Ms. Pooja Jain Company Secretary 01/08/2019 12/10/2022 

* Mr. Vaibhav Shah has been re-appointed as Managing Director for period of five years w.e.f 08/07/2022 in the 
06th AGM held on 30/09/2021 while his first date of appointment as Director from 15/07/2015. 
 

12. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
The Independent Directors of the Company have given the declaration to the Company that they meet 
the criteria of independence as provided in section 149(6) as well as under regulation 25 of (LODR) 
Regulation, 2015. There has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as 
Independent Director during the year. 
 

13. BOARD EVALUATION 
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees 
and Individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Corporate 
Governance requirements as prescribed by the SEBI Regulations.  The evaluation framework for assessing 
the performance of Directors Comprises the following key areas: 

a. Attendance of Board Meeting and Board Committee Meetings. 
b. Quality of Contribution to Board deliberations. 
c. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance. 
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d. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management. 
e. Commitment to shareholders and other stakeholder interests. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on 
the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, 
information and functioning, etc. 
  
The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the 
Committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of Committees, effectiveness of 
Committee meetings, etc.  
 
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the Individual 
Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the Individual Director to the Board and 
Committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive 
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects 
of his role.  
 
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, 
performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into 
account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The same was discussed in the 
Board Meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of the 
Board, its Committees and Individual Directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors was done by the entire board, excluding the Independent Director being 
evaluated. 
 

14. MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
During the year, 12 (Twelve) Board Meetings were held. The intervening gap between the Meetings did 
not exceed the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The details of which are as follow: 
Sr. NO. Date of Meeting Board Strength as on  

date of Board Meeting 
Directors Present as on 
date of Board Meeting 

1.  24/05/2022 5 5 
2.  25/05/2022 5 5 
3.  08/07/2022 5 5 
4.  08/08/2022 5 5 
5.  16/08/2022 5 5 
6.  03/09/2022 5 5 
7.  15/09/2022 5 5 
8.  11/11/2022 3 3 
9.  14/11/2022 3 3 
10.  24/12/2022 5 5 
11.  10/01/2023 6 6 
12.  28/02/2023 2 2 

During F.Y 2022-23, Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings  are given below: 
Name of Director Designation Board 

Meeting 
Attendance  

Last AGM 
Attendance on 
30/09/2022 

Mr. Vaibhav Dipak Shah Managing Director  12/12 Yes 
Mr. Saurin Rasiklal Shah Non executive Director 9/9 Yes 
Mr. Manendra Pratap Singh Independent Director 7/7 No 
Mr. Shrikrishna Baburam Pandey Independent Director 7/7 No 
Ms. Bandana Singh Independent Director 7/7 No 
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Mr. Dhaval Dipak Shah Additional Director-Non Executive  4/4 NA 
Mr. Praveen Kumar Rai Additional Director- Independent 2/2 NA 
Mr. Vichitra Narayan Pathak Additional Director - Independent 2/2 NA 
Ms. Shilpa Agarwal Additional Director - Independent 2/2 NA 
Mr. Samir Gaonkar Additional Director-Non Executive 2/2 NA 
 
 
15.DETAILS PERTAINING TO THE CONSTITUTION AND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD COMMITTEES 
 
(a) Audit Committee: 
The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
During the financial year 2022-23, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times on 25/05/2022, 03/09/2022 
and 14/11/2022 and 10/01/2023. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 
 
The details of composition of the Committee and their attendance at the meetings during year are  

Name Designation Category No. of Meetings Attended 
Mr. Saurin Rasiklal Shah Chairman Non-executive Director 3/3 
Mr. Manendra Pratap Singh Member Independent Director 2/2 
Ms. Bandana Singh Member Independent Director  2/2 
Mr. Vaibhav Shah Member Managing Director 2/2 
Mr. Dhaval Dipak Shah Member Non-executive Director 2/2 
Mr. Samir Gaonkar Member Non-executive Director 1/1 

Audit Committee has been reconstituted accordingly when required due to resignation of directors. 
 
All the recommendations of the Audit Committee have been accepted by the Board of Directors. The 
Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
30th September, 2022.  The Minutes of all above stated meeting of the Audit Committee were noted at 
the Board Meeting. 
 
Terms of reference and role of audit committee includes the matters specified under the companies act, 
2013. Broad terms of reference includes; oversight of financial reporting process, review financial results 
and related information, approval to related party transactions, review internal financial controls, risk 
management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, audit process, relevant compliances, 
appointment and payments to auditors. 
 
(b) Nomination And Remuneration Committee: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company is constituted in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
During the Financial year 2022-23, 2 (Two) meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
were held on 25/05/2022 and 03/09/2022.  
 
The details of composition of the Committee and their attendance at the meetings during year are  

Name Designation Category No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Saurin Rasiklal Shah Chairman Non-executive Director 2/2 
Mr. Manendra Pratap Singh Member Independent Director 2/2 
Ms. Bandana Singh Member Independent Director 2/2 
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Nomination and Remuneration has been reconstituted accordingly when required due to resignation of 
directors. 
 
The Chairman of the NRC was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th 
September,  2022. The Minutes of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting were noted at the 
Board Meeting. 
 
The terms of reference as laid by the board broadly include to recommend to the Board a remuneration 
policy relating to directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formulation of the criteria for 
determining qualifications ,positive attributes and independence of a director, formulation of criteria for 
evaluation of independent Directors and the Board, devising a policy on Board diversity ,identify persons 
who are qualified to become directors and who be appointed in senior management in accordance with 
the criteria laid down and recommend to the board their appointment and removal. 
 
(c) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:  
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013.   
The broad terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as under:  
 Consider and resolve the grievances of share holders of the Company including redressal of investor 

complaints such as transfer or credit of securities, non-receipt of dividend / notice / annual reports, 
etc. and all other shareholder  related matters.  

 Consider and approve issue of share certificates (including issue of renewed or duplicate share 
certificates), transfer and transmission of securities, etc.  
 

During the Financial Year 2022-23, 2 (Two) meeting of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee were 
held on 25/05/2022 and 03/09/2022. Ms. Pooja Jain, Company Secretary was designated as Compliance 
Officer of the Company till date of her resignation i.e. 12/10/2022. 
 
The details of composition of the Committee and their attendance at the meetings during year are  

Name Designation Category No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Saurin Rasiklal Shah Chairman Non-executive Director 2/2 
Mr. Manendra Pratap Singh Member Independent Director 2/2 
Ms. Bandana Singh Member Independent Director  2/2 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been reconstituted accordingly when required due to 
resignation of directors. 
 
During the year, the Company has not received any complaints from the Shareholders of the Company. 
There were no outstanding complaints as on 31st March, 2023. 
 
(d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:  
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The terms of reference of the Committee, inter-alia, includes to formulate and recommend to the Board, 
a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the 
Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013; to recommend the amount of 
expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities and to monitor the implementation of the projects, programs 
and activities undertaken by the Company there under from time to time. 
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During the Financial Year 2022-23, 2 (Two)  meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
were held on 25/05/2022 and 03/09/2022.  
 
The details of composition of the Committee and their attendance at the meetings during year are  

Name Designation Category No. of Meetings Attended 
Mr. Saurin Rasiklal Shah Chairman Non-executive Director 2/2 
Ms. Bandana Singh Member Independent Director 2/2 
Mr. Manendra Pratap Singh Member Independent Director  2/2 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been reconstituted accordingly when required due to 
resignation of directors. 
 
(e) Independent Directors Meeting 
During the year under review, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held 
on 25/05/2022, without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management. 
The Independent Directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a 
whole, performance of Chairperson of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of 
flow of information between the Company Management and the Board in terms of Schedule IV of the 
Act. All the Independent Directors of the Company were present in the meeting. 
 

16. POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR 
DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND 
OTHER MATTERS 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy 
for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration including criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes and other matters provided under sub section (3) of 
section 178 of the Companies Act 2013. The Company’s Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel available on Company’s website www.sagardiamonds.com 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for Directors Appointment and 
Remuneration including criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and Independence of 
Director. The following attribute/criteria for selection have been laid by the board on the 
recommendation of committee: 
 The candidate should possess the positive attributes such as leadership, Entrepreneurship or such 

other attributes which in the opinion of the committee are in the interest of the Company. 
 The candidate should be free from any disqualification as provided under sections 164 and 167 of 

Companies Act, 2013 
 The candidate should meet the conditions of being independent as stipulated under the companies 

act, 2013. 
 The appointment or re‐ appointment of a Director is made pursuant to an established procedure 

which includes assessment of managerial skills, professional behaviour, technical skills and other 
requirements as may be required by the post. 

 The Executive and Whole‐time Directors of the Company are paid remuneration as per their terms 
and conditions which are approved by the Board after taking into Consideration the 
recommendations made by Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 
17. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has adopted a whistle Blower Policy through which the Company encourages employees to 
bring to the attention of Senior Management, any unethical behavior and improper practices and 
wrongful conduct taking place in the Company. The brief details of such vigil mechanism is available on 
website of the company i.e. www.sagardiamonds.com. 
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18. CODE OF CONDUCT: 
The Board of Directors of the Company has formulated and adopted Code of Conduct for Board of 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel. During the year, Board of Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel has complied with general duties, rules, acts and regulations. In this regard 
certificate from Managing Directors as required under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been received by the Board and the same is annexed as 
Annexure-1. Code of Conduct form Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel is available on 
the Company’s website www.sagardiamonds.com. 
 

19. CFO CERTIFICATION: 
In compliance with Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, a declaration by CFO was placed before 
the Board, certifying the accuracy of Financial Statements and the adequacy of internal controls 
pertaining to Financial Reporting for the year ended 31st March, 2023 is annexed as  Annexure-1. 
 

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has undertaken CSR activities, 
projects and programs as provided in the CSR policy of the Company and as identified under Schedule VII 
to the Companies Act, 2013.The Company’s CSR Policy statement and annual report on the CSR activities 
undertaken during the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, in accordance with Section 135 of the Act 
and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)Rules, 2014 is annexed as  Annexure-2. 
In order to incorporate the amendments notified through the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021 dated 22nd January, 2021, the Board of Directors has amended the CSR 
policy of the Company. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is placed on the Company’s website 
www.sagardiamonds.com. 
 

21. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 
them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 
2013 that: 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures; the annual accounts have been prepared in compliance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013; 

b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company 
for year ended on that date; 

c)  the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; 
f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

22. AUDITORS 
(a) Statutory Auditors: 
M/s. Thakkar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration No. 127202W) were 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 07th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 30th September, 2022 for a term of five consecutive years commencing from financial year 2022-
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23 up to Financial Year 2026-27, from conclusion of the 07th Annual General Meeting of the Company till 
the conclusion of the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company. However, M/s. Thakkar & Co., 
Chartered Accountants have resigned with effect from 28/02/2023 from the office of Statutory Auditor of 
the Company, resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditor of the Company as 
envisaged by section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
The Board recommended before Members of the company at General Meeting held on 25/08/2023, M/s. 
AK Barman & Associates & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 316190E), as Statutory Auditors of 
the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of Thakkar & Co. Chartered Accountants 
(FRN No. 127202W), till the conclusion of the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company and to 
conduct the Statutory Audit for Financial Year 2022-23. 
 
The Board has recommended to the members at ensuing Annual General Meeting for the appointment of 
M/s. Nitin Gami & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 332567E) as Statutory Auditor of the 
Company to hold office for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years (Financial year 2023-24 to Financial Year 
2027-28) commencing from the conclusion of this 08th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 13th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2028. M/s. Nitin Gami & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 332567E) has confirmed their eligibility to act as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company. 
 
Explanation Or Comments On Qualifications, Reservations Or Adverse Remarks Or Disclaimers Made By 
The Auditors:  
 
M/s. AK Barman & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN No. 316190E) have completed the Statutory 
Audit for period 2022-23 and submitted their Auditors Report for financial year 2022-23. 
 
Members’ attention is invited to the observation made by the Auditors under “Qualified Opinion” 
appearing in Auditors Reports. " We draw attention to note 25 of the Statement, regarding the 
Management's contention about the recoverability of the Trade Receivables mentioned therein. We 
have not been able to substantiate the Management’s contention regarding the carrying value of Trade 
Receivables aggregating to INR 7,56,123.47 lakh. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the 
appropriateness of the carrying value of such Trade Receivables and their consequential impact on the 
financial results and the financial position of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
We also draw attention to show cause notice received by the Company from the Development 
Commissioner, Surat Special Economic Zone, Sachin regarding non-compliance with regard to overdue 
outstanding receivables, accordingly we are unable to comment on their consequential impact on the 
financial position of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
“The Board is of the opinion that It is not going to majorly impact financial position of the company. 
Considering nature of our industry, Post covid-19 situation and past experience, such delay / late recovery 
from receivables have been in earlier years also. No major write off has been happened in past. In the 
opinion of the Management, no allowance/ provision are required for above Trade receivables and these 
receivables are considered good and fully recoverable." 
 
During the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, therefore no details is required to be disclosed under section 134(3)(ca) of the Act. 
 
(b) Internal Auditors:  
The Board of the Company has appointed M/s. N R Panchal & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal 
Auditors of the Company for financial year 2022-23 and for Financial Year 2023-24. 



SAGAR DIAMONDS LIMITED 

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 [28] 
 

(c) Cost Auditors:  
During Financial year 2021-22, Provisions related to Cost Auditor is not applicable to the Company. 
 

23. SECRETARIAL AUDIT 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Audit Committee recommended and the 
Board of Directors appointed Ms. Manjula Poddar, Practising Company Secretary to conduct Secretarial 
Audit for the Financial Year 2022-23. The Report of the Secretarial Auditors is annexed as Annexure-3 in 
Form MR-3 to this Report.  
 
Members’ attention is invited to the observation made by the Secretarial Auditors-  

(i) The Company has not yet filed SDD Compliance Certificate of September and March 2023 
Quarter ended and marked as SDD Non-Compliant by BSE. 

(ii) Casual Vacancy of Statutory Auditor has not filled within time stipulated as per the Section 
139(8)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(iii) The Company has not filled the casual vacancy of Company Secretary within six months as 
required under Sec. 203(4) of The Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under. 

(iv) The Company has not filled the casual vacancy of Independent Non-Executive Independent 
Directors within 3 months as per Schedule IV of Section 149(8). Hence Board and Committee 
Composition were not properly constituted for the period of 6 months. 

(v) The Company has received show cause notice from the SEZ Development Authority, Surat, 
Special Economic Zone, Sachin regarding recovery of outstanding Trade Receivables. 

 
The Board is of the opinion that; 

a) In response to observations (i) the Company is in the process of purchasing the software for 
maintenance of SDD. The Company will start maintaining the SDD from Q3 FY 23-24 in the SDD 
software. 

b) In response to observations (ii), (iii) and (iv), during year continuous change in Board due to 
resignation & appointment of directors have made delay in decision of appointing statutory 
auditor and proper board composition could not be made. The company is finding suitable 
candidate for post of company secretary and will ensure to comply.  

c) In response to observations (v) It is not going to majorly impact financial position of the company. 
Considering nature of our industry, Post covid-19 situation and past experience, such delay / late 
recovery from receivables have been in earlier years also. No major write off has been happened 
in past. In the opinion of the Management, no allowance/ provision are required for above Trade 
receivables and these receivables are considered good and fully recoverable." 

  
24. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE  

Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of 
the notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report. 
 

25. CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
All related party transactions entered into during the financial year were on an Arm Length basis and in 
the ordinary course of business. There were no material related party transactions made by the company 
with related parties which may have potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. Details 
of Related party transactions are provided in note 28 to financial statements and The particulars of every 
contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) 
of section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 is disclosed in Form AOC-2 as Annexure-4 to this report. Related 
party transactions are placed before the audit committee and also before the board and for approval of 
shareholders wherever necessary in compliance with the provisions of the Act, listing agreement and 
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policy of the company to related party transactions. The Company has not entered into Contracts / 
arrangement / transactions with related parties which are not at arms’ length basis. 
 

26. DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
The nature of business is manufacturing of Diamonds. Risk management is an ongoing process and 
embedded in the operating framework of the Company.  The Company has in place a mechanism to 
identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by 
the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing 
basis. Some of the risks faced by the Company are: a. Foreign Exchange Risk b. Growth Risk c. Stiff 
Competition d. Regulatory Risk e. Financial Risk f. Labour Risk g. Raw material price Risk. At present, there 
are no risks which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company. 
  
Your Company has not formed Risk Management Committee as it is not applicable under Regulation 21 of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.    
 

27. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report.  
 

28. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. The 
Company’s internal control system is commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. 
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or 
operation were observed. 
 

29. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the 
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2), issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 

30. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate 
trading in securities by the Directors/KMP and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires 
pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares 
by the Directors/KMP and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 
information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The 
Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. All Directors and the designated employees have 
confirmed compliance with the Code. The same has been displayed at the company’s website at  
www.sagardiamonds.com. 
 

31. INSURANCE 
The Company’s building, plant and machineries, Stocks and other properties wherever necessary and to 
the extent required have been adequately insured. 
 

32. LISTING OF SHARES AND LISTING FEES 
The Equity Shares of your Company are listed and actively traded on the SME platform of BSE Limited. 
The Company has paid annual listing fees to the stock exchanges for the financial year 2023-24.  
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33. REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) and Rule 5(2) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed as 
Annexure -5 to the Director’s Report.  
 

34. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relations at all levels. 
 

35. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO 

As required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 the particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo is annexed as Annexure- 6 to the Director’s Report.  
 

36. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL), ACT, 2013 

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. Your Directors 
further state that during the year under review, No compliant was received from any employee during F.Y 
2022-23 and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 31st March, 2023 for redressal. 
 

37. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS  
During the year under review, there are not any significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or 
Courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and your Company’s operations in future. 
 

38. GENERAL  
d. There was no revision in the financial statements. 
e. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any 

remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries. 
f. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. 
g. There is no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
h. There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 

 
39. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the financial institutions, Government Authorities, 
customers, vendors, investors of the Company and the communities in which the Company operates, for 
their co-operation and valuable support extended to the Company during the year.  
Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services 
by the Company’s executives, staff and workers. 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Sagar Diamonds  Limited             For Sagar Diamonds  Limited                                       
Sd/-                                                           Sd/-                 
(Vaibhav Dipak Shah)                           (Samir Gaonkar )                                          
Managing Director                                Director 
DIN NO. 03302936 DIN NO. 03100710 
 
Date:  08th September, 2023 
Place:  Surat  
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ANNEXURE-1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

CFO/CEO CERTIFICATION 
To,  
The Board of Directors of  
Sagar Diamonds  Limited  
 
In accordance with Regulation 17(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we certify that:  
1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Sagar Diamonds Limited 

for the year ended 31st March, 2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:  
a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading;  
b.  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  
 
2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year ended 31st March, 2023 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s 
code of conduct.  

 
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of 
such internal controls.  

 
4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:  

a. That there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2023;  

b.  That there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2023; and 

c.  That there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.  
For Sagar Diamonds Limited 

Sd/- 
(Vaibhav Dipak Shah)                               

Managing Director 
DIN NO. 03302936 

Date: 08th September, 2023 
Place: Surat 
 
Declaration regarding compliance by board members and senior management personnel with the 
company’s code of conduct 
 
I, Vaibhav Dipak Shah, Managing Director of Sagar Diamonds Limited, hereby declares that all the Board 
Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed for the year ended 31st March, 2023 
compliance with the respective Codes of Conduct laid down for them.   

Date: 08th September, 2023 
Place: Surat                                                       

Sd/- 
(Vaibhav Dipak Shah)                               

Managing Director 
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ANNEXURE-2 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
Annual Report on the CSR activities pursuant to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules 2014 

 
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:  The  Term of reference of the Policy lays down the 

guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare and sustainable 
development of the community, in the local area and around areas of operations of the Company 
including other parts of the Country. CSR programs or projects to be undertaken by the Company 
in terms of the Policy, shall relate to activities listed in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, 
as amended from time to time. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the website 
of the Company i.e www.sagardiamonds.com. 
 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 
 

Name Designation 
in 
committee 

Nature of 
Directorship 

No. of  Meetings 
of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

No. of Meetings 
of CSR 
Committee 
attended during 
the year 

Mr. Saurin Rasiklal Shah Chairman Non-executive 
Director 

2 2 

Ms.  Bandana Singh Member Independent Director 2 2 
Mr. Manendra Pratap Singh Member Independent Director  2 2 

Corporate Social Responsibility committee has been reconstituted accordingly as and when 
required due to resignation of Director. 
 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:-  
https://www.sagardiamonds.com/investor-relations/policies.aspx 
  

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the 
report): Not Applicable 
 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off 
for the financial year, if any: 

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off 
from preceding financial years 
(in lakhs) 

Amount required to be set- off 
for the financial year, if any (in 
lakhs) 

1 2020-21 5.04 -- 

2 2021-22 9.03 -- 

3 2022-23 3.16  
 TOTAL 17.23 -- 

 
6. Average net profits of the Company as per Section 135(5):   Rs. 1,841.80 lakhs  

 
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 36.84 lakhs  

(b) Surplus arising out of CSR projects or programmes/activities of previous financial years: Nil 
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: - Nil 
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).: Rs. 36.84 Lakhs 
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year 
(in lakhs) 

Amount Unspent (in lakhs) 
Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5) 

Amount (in lakhs) Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount 
(in lakhs) 

Date of transfer 

40.00 -- -- -- -- -- 

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
Sl 

No. 
Name 
of the 

Project 

Item 
from 

the list 
of 

activitie
s in 

Schedul
e VII to 
the Act 

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No) 

Location of the 
project 

Project 
duratio

n 

Amou
nt 

alloca
ted 
for 
the 

proje
ct (in 
lakhs) 

Amount 
spent  in 

the 
current 
financial 

Year  
(in lakhs) 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR Account 
for the 

project as 
per Section 

135(6)  
(in lakhs) 

Mode of 
Implemen

tation -
Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Through Implementing 
Agency 

State District Name CSR 
Registrati
on 
number 

1 - - - - - - - - - - - - 

2  - -  - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
  Total                       

 
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
Sl. 
No
. 

Name of the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule VII 

to the Act 

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No) 

Location of the project Amount spent  
for the project 

(in lakhs) 

Mode of 
Impleme
ntation -

Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Mode of Implementation - Through 
Implementing Agency 

State District Name CSR Registration 
number 

1 Vidyabharati 
Bharatiya 
Shiksha 
Sankul Samiti 

Promoting 
education 

No Mahar 
ashtra 

Pune 40.00 Yes Vidyabharati 
Bharatiya 
Shiksha 
Sankul Samiti 
Chiplun 

F19886/15.02.2005 

  Total         40.00       
 
(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads- Nil 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- Nil 
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- Rs. 40.00 lakhs 
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any 
Sl. 

No. 
Particular Amount (in lakhs) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)  36.84 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year  40.00 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]  3.16  
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of 

the previous financial years, if any 
 -- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]  3.16 
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9.   (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
Sl. 

No. 
Preceding 
Financial 

Year 

Amount transferred  
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 

section 135 (6) (in 
lakhs) 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 
lakhs) 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if any. 

Amount 
remaining 

to be 
spent in 

succeeding 
financial 
years (in 

lakhs) 

Name of 
the Fund 

Amount 
(in lakhs) 

Date of 
transfer 

 1 2020-21  -  -  -  -  -  - 
2 2021-22 - - - - - - 
3 2022-23 - - - - - - 
 Total - - - - - - 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 
financial year(s): 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
Sl. 
No. 

Project 
ID 

Name 
of the 
Project 

Financial 
Year in 
which the 
project was 
commenced 

Project 
duration 

Total 
amount 
allocated 
for the 
project 
(in lakhs) 

Amount 
spent on 
the 
project 
in the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 
lakhs) 

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 
the end of 
reporting 
Financial 
Year 
(in lakhs) 

Status of 
the project 
-Completed 
/Ongoing 

 1 - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
 Total -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

 
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details)- Not Applicable 
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). Nil 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. Nil 
(c)Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 
capital asset is registered, their address etc. 

Nil 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete 
address and location of the capital asset). 

Nil 

 
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit 

as per section 135(5). - Not Applicable 
 
 

For Sagar Diamonds Limited 
Sd/- Sd/- 
Vaibhav Dipak Shah Samir Gaonkar 
Managing Director  Director 
DIN: 03302936 DIN: 03100710 

 
Date: 08th September, 2023 
Place: Surat  



SAGAR DIAMONDS LIMITED 

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 [35] 
 

ANNEXURE-3 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
To, 
The Members  
Sagar Diamonds Limited 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Sagar Diamonds Limited (hereinafter called the company) (CIN 
NO: L36912GJ2015PLC083846). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in 
our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 
 
1. I have examined the available books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the 
provisions of: 
i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;  

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;  
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings -  Proper disclosures were made under these regulations, where required. 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz :-  
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;- There was no such event during the year. 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015;-Proper disclosures were made under these regulations. 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009;- There were no events occurred during the year which were attracting 
the provisions of these  Guidelines and hence not applicable. 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;- There were no events occurred during the year 
which were attracting the provisions of these  Guidelines and hence not applicable. 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008; - There were no events occurred during the year which were attracting the provisions 
of these Regulations and hence not applicable. 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;- There were no 
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events occurred during the year which were attracting the provisions of these Regulations 
and hence not applicable. 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; - 
There were no events occurred during the year which were attracting the provisions of 
these Regulations and hence not applicable. 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; - There 
were no events occurred during the year which were attracting the provisions of these 
Regulations and hence not applicable. 
 

vi. As per information provided by the management and Board of directors of the company, The 
Company is in process of registration with Factories Act Compliance, and is generally compliant 
with the labour laws as applicable to the Company. 
  

2. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
i. Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India; however copies of minutes and notices were not available for physical 
inspection. 

ii. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited-SME Exchange; 
 
During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above except: 
  

i. The Company has not yet filed SDD Compliance Certificate of September and March 2023 
Quarter ended and marked as SDD Non-Compliant by BSE. 

ii. Casual Vacancy of Statutory Auditor has not filled within time stipulated as per the Section 
139(8)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

iii. The Company has not filled the casual vacancy of Company Secretary within six months as 
required under Sec. 203(4) of The Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under. 

iv. The Company has received show cause notice from the SEZ Development Authority, Surat, 
Special Economic Zone, Sachin regarding recovery of outstanding Trade Receivables. 

 
3. We further report that: 

 
I. The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors at instances during the year and at the 
year ending. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of 
the Act except as mentioned below; 
 

i. The Company has not filled the casual vacancy of Independent Non-Executive Independent 
Directors within 3 months as per Schedule IV of Section 149(8). Hence Board and Committee 
Composition were not properly constituted for the period of 6 months. 

ii. The Company has not filled the casual vacancy of Company Secretary within six months as 
required under Sec. 203(4) of The Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under. 

 
II. As informed by the management, Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 

Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting; However minutes and 
attendance sheet were not available for verification. 
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III. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded 
as part of the minutes.  

 
4. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 

Sd/- 
Manjula Poddar 

Company Secretary in Practice 
FCS No. 9426 

C.P. No. 11252 
UDIN: F009426E000973180 

Peer Review Cert No. 3830/2023 
Place: Kolkata 

Date: 08th September, 2023 
Annexure - 1 to Secretarial Audit Report 

To, 
The Members, 
Sagar Diamonds Limited 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 
the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.  

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company.  

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representations about the compliance of 
Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, 
Standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

Sd/- 
Manjula Poddar 

Company Secretary in Practice 
FCS No. 9426 

C.P. No. 11252 
UDIN: F009426E000973180 

Peer Review Cert No. 3830/2023 
Place: Kolkata 

Date: 08th September, 2023 
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ANNEXURE-4 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
FORM NO. AOC.2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 
length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:  No Contracts or 
arrangements or transactions entered which were not at Arm's length basis. 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

Sr 
N
o. 

Name of 
related party 

Nature of Relationship Nature of 
Contract/A
rrangemen
t/Transacti
on 

Durat
ion  

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions including 
the value, if 
any:(During 2022-23) 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

Date of 
approval  by 
the Board, if 
any: 

Amt. 
paid 
as 
adva
nces, 
if 
any 

1 Vaibhav 
Shah 

Director, KMP & 
Personnel exercising 
more than 20% voting 
power 

Salary Yearly Rs. 208.00 as salary 30/09/2021  

2 Saurin 
Rasiklal Shah 

Director & KMP Purchase/ 
Payment 

Yearly Rs. 40.91 as Purchase 
Rs. 48.89 as payment 

30/09/2021  

3 Pooja 
Surendra 
Jain 

Company Secretary Salary Yearly Rs. 2.12  01/08/2019  

4 Carbide Tool 
Corner 

Enterprise significantly 
influenced by relative 
of KMP by sharing 
more than 20% in 
profits 

Purchase / 
Payment 

Yearly Rs. 12.44 as Purchase 
Rs. 12.22 as Payment 

03/09/2022  

5 Sagarempire 
Bullion Pvt. 
Ltd 

Enterprise significantly 
influenced by relative 
of KMP by sharing 
more than 20% in 
profits 

Payment Yearly Rs. 956.11 as Payment 30/09/2022  

6 Sagarempire 
Jewels Pvt. 
Ltd. 

Enterprise significantly 
influenced by relative 
of KMP by sharing 
more than 20% in 
profits 

Sale / 
Payment 

Yearly Rs. 30,780.01 as sale 
Rs. 1,40,167.74 as 
Payment 

30/09/2022  

 
For Sagar Diamonds Limited 
Sd/- Sd/- 
Vaibhav Dipak Shah Samir Gaonkar 
Managing Director Director 
DIN: 03302936 DIN: 03100710 

Date: 08th September, 2023 
Place: Surat  
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ANNEXURE-5 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

PART-(A) Disclosure as required under Rules 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
 
(1) Ratio of the Remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 

company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and the percentage increase in remuneration 
of each Director, Chief Financial officer, Chief Executive officer, Company Secretary for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2023: 

Name of the Director/KMP Remuneration 
received 
(In lakhs) 

% Increase in 
Remuneration 
in F.Y 2022-23 

Ratio to median 
remuneration 

Mr. Vaibhav  Shah  (Managing Director) 208.00 148% 202.54 
*Ms. Pooja Jain (Company Secretary) 2.12 - N.A 

*Ms . Pooja Jain resigned with effect from 12/10/2022.  
  No sitting fees paid to Independent Directors during year. 
 

(2) Median Remuneration of employee for financial year 2022-23 is Rs. 1,02,698. 
(3) During F.Y 2022-23, there was increase of 58.96% in the median remuneration of employees. 
(4) There were 113 permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March, 2023. 
(5) Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 

in the last financial year was 36.44%. 
(6) It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per remuneration policy of the company. 
 
PART-(B) information as per Rules 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
a) Details of top ten employee in terms of gross remuneration paid during year ended 31st March, 2023. 
Sr 
N
o 

Name of 
Employee 

Designation/
Department 

Remuner
ation 

received  
(In Lakhs) 

 

Nature of 
employmen

t 

Qualificati
on 

Experience 
 

Date 
of 
comm
ence
ment 
of 
emplo
yment  

Age Last 
employment 
held before 
joining 
company 

% of 
equity 
shares 
held 

whether 
any such 
employe
e is a 
relative 
of any 
director 
or 
manager 
of 
Company 

1. Vaibhav Dipak 
Shah 

Managing 
Director 

208.00 Permanent B.com, 
GIA 

15 years 2015 38 Sagar Gems,  
Proprietor 

49.26 - 

2. Hiren Trivedi Manager 6.67 Permanent F.Y.B.com 7  Years 2017 37 Sagar gems   - 
3. Nandlal Gadri CHIEF 4.82 Permanent 12TH PASS 10 years 2019 39  -   
4. Jitendra 

Waghela 
Office In 
charge 

4.05 Permanent - - - - - - - 

5. Jeevan Shinde Sarin Galaxy 
Planner & 
Marker 

3.65 Permanent - - - - - - - 

6. Mahendra 
Singh 

Security in 
charge 

3.61 Permanent - - - - - - - 

7. Sajid Bodyguard 3.57 Permanent - - - - - - - 
8. Abbas Bodyguard 3.43 Permanent - - - - - - - 
9. Aadesh 

Moghe 
Liason 
Executive 

3.16 Permanent - - - - - - - 

10. Brijendra 
Upadhaya   

Head of office 3.04 Permanent - - - - - - - 

11. Montu 
Gandhi 

Office In 
Charge 

3.00 Permanent T.Y.B.com 10 Years 2017 34 Sagar gems    
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ANNEXURE-6 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Details on conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 
i The company is engaged in manufacturing of diamonds and jewellery and its operation do not account 
for substantial energy consumption. The Company continues its efforts to reduce and optimise the use of 
energy consumption at its manufacturing facilities by installing hi-tech energy monitoring and 
conservation systems to monitor usage, minimise wastage and increase overall efficiency at every stage 
of power consumption. Use of LED lamps was initiated to replace CFL Bulbs and save on energy cost and 
conserve the same.  
ii. The energy conservation measures taken are given as under: The activity of the Company does not 
require large scale consumption of energy. Hence, the Company has not taken any energy conservation 
measures. There are no additional investments and proposals, for reduction of consumption of energy.  
 
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
The Company carries out general Research and Development in the manufacture of Jewellery as per 
international standards, in developing new range of products, manufacturing process etc.  
I. Efforts made towards technology absorption: NIL 
II. Benefits derived: NIL 
III. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 

of the financial year): N.A. 
a. Details of Technology: N.A. 
b. Year of Import: N.A. 
c. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: N.A. 
d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof – N.A. 

IV. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL 
 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
During period under review, the Company has successfully exported Diamonds & jewellery to Hong Kong.  
 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
Particulars As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022 
Foreign Exchange Earning 4,06,965.62 4,83,997.04 
Foreign Exchange Outgo 3,90,696.48 4,48,175.57 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 
World Economy: 
According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global economy is estimated to have grown at 
3.4% in CY22. Global economic growth is expected to moderate further to 2.8% in CY23 before slightly 
rebounding to 3.0% in CY24. Advanced economies witnessed multi-decade high inflation due to 
continued supply chain constraints and elevated energy and commodity prices. Emerging markets and 
developing economies, too, faced inflation. 
 
As the global economy prepared to leave the pandemic behind, the Russia-Ukraine conflict delayed the 
normalisation of supply chains. At the same time, China adopted a stringent zero-COVID policy for most 
of CY22. Central banks across major economies, spearheaded by the US Federal Reserve, responded with 
synchronised rate hikes to tame inflation. The weakness of the Chinese economy also weighed on global 
growth. However, during the second half of the CY22, the economic growth rebounded, banking on 
crucial factors such as easing inflation, robust labour markets, solid household consumption and business 
investments. Moreover, China reopened in November 2022, adding to the upward shift in global activity. 
 
Despite central banks raising interest rates and declining food and energy prices, underlying price 
pressures remain stubborn, particularly due to tight labour markets in several economies. The rapid 
increase in policy rates have led to visible side effects, including highlighted vulnerabilities in the banking 
sector and growing concerns of contagion across the broader financial industry, including non-banking 
financial institutions. Despite declining headline inflation, core inflation has yet to reach its peak. Owing 
to ongoing inflationary pressures, interest rates are expected to remain elevated. (Source: IMF - World 
Economic Outlook, April 2023) 
 
Indian Economy:  
 
The year 2022 was memorable for India as the nation celebrated its 75th year of independence while 
claiming its place as the world’s fifth-largest economy, boasting a nominal GDP of $3.5 trillion. According 
to CSO estimates, the Indian economy grew by 7.2%, the fastest among major economies, driven by 
strong domestic private consumption, government expenditure on infrastructure and a favourable 
investment climate. Although India, too, faced high inflation, the Reserve Bank of India undertook a series 
of policy rate hikes to bring it down within its comfort range. Despite the challenges of higher oil prices 
leading to increased import bills and trade deficits, concerns about the current account deficit and its 
financing has eased over time. 
 
India’s economy has displayed remarkable resilience amidst global challenges, positioning itself as the 
frontrunner in growth among major economies. The latest economic survey anticipates a substantial GDP 
growth rate of 6.5% in FY24, further consolidating India’s impressive growth trajectory. (Source: 
Economic  Survey of India, 2022-2023) 
 
Gems and Jewellery Industry review: 
Gems and Jewellery comprises of the following sub-sectors:  
• Diamonds  
• Gemstones  
• Pearl  
• Gold, Silver and Platinum Jewellery  
 
The Gems and Jewellery sector plays a significant role in the Indian economy, contributing around 7.5% of 
the country’s GDP and about 14% to India’s total merchandise exports, accounting for the third largest 
commodity share. The gem and jewellery sector employ  over 5 million people.  
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From April-March 2023, India's gems and jewellery exports were at US$ 37.46 billion according to figures 
released by the Gem & Jewellery Export Council (GJEPC). India’s gems & jewellery exports are expected to 
reach US$ 100 billion by 2027. From April-March 2023, India’s diamond exports were at US$ 22.04 billion. 
 
The Government of India, along with all the stakeholders of gems and jewellery sector, is well committed 
towards aggressively promoting exports, identifying challenges and addressing them with necessary 
interventions, assisting exporters, especially SME units, and exploring new markets while consolidating 
existing ones. With strong growth prospects, the government of India has also declared the gems & 
jewellery sector as a focus area for export promotion. The Government has recently undertaken various 
measures to promote investments and to upgrade technology and skills to promote ‘Brand India’ in the 
international market. India is deemed to be the hub of the global jewellery market because of its low 
costs and availability of high-skilled labour.   
 
Indian exports of gems & jewellery comprises various items such as cut and polished diamonds, silver and 
gold jewellery, gold medallions and coins, rough diamonds, coloured gemstones and others. 
 
Western Region is key exporting hub for the gems and jewellery industry contributing almost 77% of the 
total exports in 2021-22. Surat, a city of Gujarat state in the western region of India has more than 450 
organised jewellery manufacturers, importers & exporters, making it the jewellery manufacturing hub of 
the world. 
 
India is the world’s largest cutting and polishing centre for diamonds, with the cutting and polishing 
industry being well supported by government policies. Moreover, India exports 75% of the world’s 
polished diamonds, as per statistics from the Gems and Jewellery Export promotion Council (GJEPC). 
India’s Gems and Jewellery sector has been contributing in a big way to the Country’s Foreign Exchange 
Earnings (FEEs). The Government of India has viewed the sector as a thrust area for export promotion. 
The Indian government presently allows 100% Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in the sector through the 
automatic route. 
 
Cut & Polished Diamonds is the largest exported commodity within gem and jewellery sector with exports 
valued at US$ 25.04 billion for in F.Y 23.  
 
The Government has reduced custom duty on cut and polished diamond and colored gemstones from 
7.5% to 5% and duty on the simply sawn diamond was reduced to nil.  
 
Industry Trend – Diamond Jewellery:  
• Increasing demand for precious gem stones: Changing preferences of young people from gold to 
coloured gemstone, platinum and palladium jewellery.  
• Multiple occasions for purchase: Women are buying diamond jewellery for occasions other than 
marriage.  
• Focus on technology: Emergence of new manufacturing techniques.  
• Changing demographics impacting demand: Bridal diamond jewellery is the foundation of industry, but 
product popular with millennial is helping to spur growth.  
• Growth of lab created diamonds: Also known as synthetic diamonds, artificial diamonds, cultivated 
diamonds or cultured diamonds.  
• Focus on Quality: Introduction of cumulative FDI (in $) in diamond and gold ornaments stricter quality 
norms and hallmarking. 
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Opportunities and Threats:  
 
(a) Opportunities/Strength  
¶ Induction of widely experienced and specialized personnel on the Board.  
¶ Good combination of technical as well as advisory personnel in the management.  
¶ More and more benefits and exemptions are likely to come in the way of exports and Special 

Economic Zones and the Company, having commendable exports and being situated in SEZ, is 
likely to receive the advantage of the same.  

¶ Some of the world retail majors have decided sometime back to source part of their 
requirements from India. This shall further the growth of the Diamond industry in India.  

(b) Threats  
¶ Fast-changing Fashion Trends  

Jewellery being a vital fashion and lifestyle statement, demands the players to be more agile, and 
responsive to the constantly evolving trends and consumer preferences.  
¶ Regulatory Framework  

Changes in regulation and stringent compliance may cause temporary blip in sales during the transition 
period. Macro economic factors such as Rupee fluctuations, enactment of new laws such as GST, KYC 
norms and quality consciousness amongst export markets. 
¶ Liquidity Crisis  

The industry is highly capital intensive in nature with long working capital cycles, owing to the long 
conversion cycle from procurement of rough diamonds to sale of polished stock. It is required to maintain 
high levels of inventory at all points in time to service its client’s orders in a timely manner Strength of the 
balance sheet and access to easy credit is often required to facilitate and sustain ease in operations. 
 
Risks and Concerns:  
¶ The largely unorganized structure of the market can affect the systematic functioning of the 

Company.  
¶ Political instability, which has at tremendous impact on the capital markets.  
¶ Likely opening up of the economy, which can be a double-edge sword.  
¶ The Diamond market in India is heavily influenced by the US Markets.  
¶ The major income component of the Company being exports, changes in economies or government 

policies of the countries to which the Company is exporting may also affect the operations of the 
Company. 

¶  Increasing competition among the Indian Exporters in this industry. 
 
Company Overview:  
The Company is a part of an Industry, which largely operates through unorganized constituents. However, 
unlike the industry, the Company has attempted to operate through as systematic and organized manner 
as possible. However, since Diamonds and Jewellery is one industry, in which India holds, commendable 
position in the world, akin to the software industry, one can look forward to more international 
involvement coming up in this industry. 
With a combination of skilled craftsmen, world-class manufacturing facility and technology and strong 
focus on innovation, the Company manufactures unique and high quality products meeting highest 
quality standards.  
The Company leverages its strong team of creative designers and skilled craftsmanship along with the 
modern research and computer-aided design to deliver products matching the latest trends and 
consumer preferences. The Company invests in training designers, mapping international trends and 
evolving global styles. Company also sources designs from international market where required to 
compliment its own collection. This ensures designers are well informed about world trends, and local 
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